

This rule was adopted on December 30, 2004, and becomes effective January 30, 2005. It may be used to determine tax liability on and after the effective date, until the codified version is available from the code reviser's office.

AMENDATORY SECTION (Amending WSR 97-08-068, filed 4/1/97, effective 5/2/97)

WAC 458-10-050 Continuing education requirements-- Appraisal practice and ethics. (1) **Introduction.** This rule provides information about the process for renewing an accreditation certificate, including detailed information about the continuing education requirements required of renewal applicants.

(2) **Renewal of accreditation certificate.** An accredited appraiser desiring to renew his or her accreditation certificate must complete a renewal application and submit it to the property tax division of the department at least two weeks prior to the expiration date of the certificate. In order to receive a renewal of the certificate, the applicant must provide proof that he or she has attended a minimum of fifteen classroom hours of approved instruction within the two years preceding the expiration date of the certificate.

~~((+2))~~ (3) **Extensions of time for renewal.** An applicant may request an extension of time to submit the renewal application and complete the continuing education requirements if the request is submitted prior to the expiration date of the certificate. The time extension shall only be approved upon a showing of good cause by the applicant and only for a maximum time period of three months from the original expiration date of the certificate. Good cause may include, but is not limited to, a showing of long-term illness or extended absence from work for valid reasons. Excessive workload, insufficient funds, lack of budget allocation, or other similar reasons are not satisfactory to show good cause.

~~((+3))~~ (4) **Preapproval of courses.** All courses, seminars, or workshops must be preapproved by the department in order to be applied toward the continuing education requirement. The department ~~((shall))~~ will use the following criteria to approve courses, seminars, or workshops:

(a) Any course, seminar, or workshop directly related to real property appraising and offered by qualified personnel ~~((shall))~~ will be approved for the full number of classroom hours involved; and

(b) Any seminar or workshop directly related to a topic or topics of general interest to an assessor's office and offered by qualified personnel ~~((shall))~~ will be approved for a maximum of three classroom hours. No more than three hours out of the fifteen classroom hours required may be on a topic or topics of

This rule was adopted on December 30, 2004, and becomes effective January 30, 2005. It may be used to determine tax liability on and after the effective date, until the codified version is available from the code reviser's office.

general interest to an assessor's office.

~~((4))~~ (5) **Course examination not required.** No examination is required for courses, seminars, or workshops taken to satisfy the requirement for continuing education classroom hours.

~~((5))~~ (6) **Participation in education other than as a student.** The continuing education requirement may be satisfied by participating other than as a student in educational process and programs approved by the department including teaching, program development, and authorship of textbooks or other written instructional materials. Approval of the number of classroom hours ~~((shall))~~ will be based upon the subject matter and time spent in preparation or development of the training or materials. In order to meet the continuing education requirement in this manner, the following criteria must be met:

(a) Textbook, course, or presentation materials must originate with and be developed by the textbook or course author or the presenter;

(b) The textbook or course author or presenter must provide the department with a description of the work involved in preparing the textbook, course, or presentation, together with the amount of time spent in preparation and amount of time, if any, proposed to be spent in actual training or presenting; and

(c) The course author or presenter must provide the department with a copy of the course or presentation outline showing the amount of time allotted to each topic covered in the course or presentation.

~~((6))~~ (7) **Topics covered.** Courses, seminars, or workshops taken to satisfy the continuing education requirement for accredited appraisers must cover topics related to real property appraisal, such as:

- (a) Ad valorem taxation;
- (b) Arbitrations;
- (c) Business courses related to practice of real estate;
- (d) Construction estimating;
- (e) Ethics and standards of professional practice;
- (f) Land use planning, zoning, and taxation;
- (g) Property development;
- (h) Real estate law;
- (i) Real property exchange;
- (j) Real property computer applications;
- (k) Mass appraisal;
- (l) Geographic information systems (GIS);
- (m) Levy process;
- (n) Boards of equalization; and
- (o) Other subjects as are approved by the department.

~~((7))~~ (8) **Same or similar content.**

(a) No applicant ~~((shall))~~ will receive approval from the

This rule was adopted on December 30, 2004, and becomes effective January 30, 2005. It may be used to determine tax liability on and after the effective date, until the codified version is available from the code reviser's office. department for courses taken within any (~~five~~) four-year time period that have the same or very similar content and are deemed comparable by the department, even if the course providers are different.

(b) Applicants who request approval from the department for continuing education hours for preparation and development of textbook, course, or presentation materials that have previously been approved by the department must provide sufficient information and explanation to indicate how the materials differ from the original approved materials and how much preparation and time was involved in the revision of the original materials.

~~((8))~~ **(9) Carry-over of classroom hours.** A maximum of five continuing education classroom hours may be carried over and applied to the following two-year period of accreditation.

~~((9))~~ **(10) Education requirement for standards of appraisal practice and ethics.** Each accredited appraiser is required to successfully complete fifteen classroom hours of a course or courses approved by the department in standards of appraisal practice and ethics. If the course or courses have not been successfully completed at the time an applicant is accredited, the course or courses attended to satisfy this requirement may also be used to satisfy the general continuing education requirement and are not in addition to the fifteen hours of continuing education required to be satisfied every two years. The requirement for successful completion of fifteen classroom hours in standards of appraisal practice and ethics must be satisfied in any one of the following three ways:

(a) An accredited appraiser had successfully completed the fifteen classroom hours of a course or courses at the time he or she was initially accredited, and can provide proof to the department of such successful completion;

(b) An accredited appraiser who has not yet successfully completed the fifteen hours of such course or courses must do so within three years of the effective date of this rule; or

(c) An applicant for accreditation must either:

(i) Have successfully completed fifteen hours of such course or courses within three years prior to the date of application; or

(ii) Successfully complete fifteen hours of such course or courses within three years of the date of accreditation.

~~((10))~~ **(11) Failure to comply with continuing education requirements.** Any accredited appraiser whose accreditation certificate has expired, and who has not received an extension of time under subsection (~~((2))~~) (3) of this section, is prohibited from appraising real property for purposes of taxation. After the certificate has expired, an applicant must show the following in order to renew the certificate:

(a) For a certificate that expired less than two years

This rule was adopted on December 30, 2004, and becomes effective January 30, 2005. It may be used to determine tax liability on and after the effective date, until the codified version is available from the code reviser's office. prior to the date the renewal application is submitted, an applicant must show that he or she has satisfied the fifteen classroom hours of continuing education requirement within the previous two years. Any application submitted within two years of the certificate expiration that fails to satisfy the continuing education requirement will be denied.

(b) For a certificate that expired more than two years prior to the date the renewal application is submitted, the application will be treated as a new application for accreditation and in addition, the applicant will be required to show that he or she has satisfied thirty classroom hours of continuing education within the previous four years.